IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

CASE NO. _____

PAUL WILLIAM SCOTT,

Appellant,

v.

STATE OF FLORIDA,

Appellee.

ON APPEAL FROM THE FIFTEENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT,
IN AND FOR PALM BEACH COUNTY, STATE OF FLORIDA

SUMMARY INITIAL BRIEF ON APPELLANT'S APPEAL
FROM THE DENIAL OF HIS MOTION FOR FLA. R.
CRIM. P. 3.850 RELIEF AND IN SUPPORT OF
APPELLANT'S APPLICATION FOR STAY OF EXECUTION

MARTIN J. MCCLAIN
Chief Assistant CCR
Florida Bar No. 0754773

OFFICE OF THE CAPITAL COLLATERAL
REPRESENTATIVE
1533 South Monroe Street
Tallahassee, FL 32301
(904) 487-4376

COUNSEL FOR APPELLANT

INTRODUCTION

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

On December 5, 1978, Jim Alessi was killed at his home in Palm Beach County. Within a month, Paul William Scott and Richard Kondian were taken into custody and charged with first degree murder. Mr. Scott was arrested in California after Robert Dixon told Florida authorities where Mr. Scott could be located. Mr. Dixon's name was included on the State's witness list but with a "last known address" (R. 1854). Mr. Scott's trial counsel was led to believe that Mr. Dixon was relevant only to how law enforcement was able to locate Mr. Scott. The State did not disclose that Mr. Dixon had told Florida Detective Collins much more. Mr. Dixon in fact told Detective Collins:

One night I was at a pool hall with a man named Allan Brasher. Allan told me that he was supposed to go back to the hotel, meet Rick, and go have dinner with the homosexual man. Allan did not want to go with Rick so he stayed at the pool hall with me. We were playing pool at a place called the Elbow Room.

Later that night I went back to the hotel. Paul's old lady told me that Paul left with Rick. I met Paul Scott for the first time two to three days prior to that night.

I stayed in the room with Paul's old lady. Later that night Rick and Paul came in. When they came in I knew something had happened. Rick was in an uproar. He was pacing around, very demanding and yelling at Paul Scott for running out on him. Rick also called Paul a punk. Rick was also saying things like, "Let's go, pack you shit, we got to get the fuck out of here."

(App. 3). Mr. Dixon further discussed with Detective Collins Kondian's homosexual relationship with Mr. Alessi (see App. 3).

Mr. Scott's trial counsel was unaware that Mr. Dixon was familiar with Mr. Kondian's efforts to recruit someone to accompany him to Mr. Alessi's house, and that according to Mr. Dixon "Rick [Kondian] was calling the shots." See App. 27. Mr. Scott's trial counsel was unaware that Mr. Dixon had reported to law enforcement Mr. Kondian's anger at Paul Scott for running out on him (App. 27). Similarly, the State did not disclose to postconviction counsel Mr. Dixon's statements. In fact, the State specifically indicated that there were no statements of witnesses to disclose (R. 1849). The State has hidden this evidence up until the present time, and has failed to disclose these statements.

Prior to the trial in early 1978, law enforcement contacted an inmate in jail with Mr. Kondian by the name of Dexter Coffin in an effort to obtain evidence against Mr. Kondian. Mr. Coffin reported to law enforcement Mr. Kondian's statements confessing to killing Mr. Alessi. Mr. Coffin has recently explained:

My name is Dexter Coffin. I presently live in Charlottesville, Virginia. In 1978, I was incarcerated at the Palm Beach County Jail with Richard Kondian.

A certain cell block at the Palm Beach County Jail was known as "The Captain's Cell." It was named for Captain Jack Donnelly who had a reputation for trying to get information about the important cases of the inmates at the jail. It was common knowledge that anyone housed in the Captain's Cell either had information in which the State and police were interested or were there to help Captain Donnelly obtain this information.

Richard Kondian and I were both placed in the Captain's Cell. Captain Donnelly pulled me aside soon after I arrived at the

jail and told me he wanted my help getting information from Richard Kondian. From that point on, we had daily meetings in which I briefed the state on anything that Richard Kondian revealed to me about the murder of James Alessi.

It turned out that Richard Kondian did end up confiding in me and asking for my advice quite a bit. Actually, many of the inmates asked for my advice because they felt that I understood the law. In seeking advice, Rick would tell me a lot about what happened on the night that the victim was killed. Rick clearly stated to me many times that he killed James Alessi or "that fag," as Rick would call him. Rick specifically told me that he "beat the shit out of him and killed him" by hitting him over the head. He was talking about how he killed James Alessi and he never mentioned anything about Paul Scott helping him.

In my daily meetings with Captain Donnelly and the representatives of the state, I would divulge to them whatever I had learned from Rick. I repeatedly informed them that Rick said that he was responsible for killing James Alessi. I told them what Rick said about beating the shit out of and killing the victim by beating him over the head.

(App. 1) (emphasis added). Mr. Coffin also indicated that Mr. Kondian discussed Mr. Alessi's sexual orientation as it related to the crime (App. 1).⁵

The State did not disclose Mr. Coffin's name to Mr. Scott's trial counsel (App. 27). Nor did the State disclose the contents of Mr. Coffin's statements to Mr. Scott's postconviction counsel. Mr. Scott's trial counsel was unaware of the existence of this

⁵At trial, the State successfully argued to the judge that defense counsel should be precluded from presenting any evidence of the victim's sexual orientation and drug usage since the defense could cite to no specific evidence indicating that these matters contributed to the homicide (R. 687).

witness who could tell Mr. Scott's jury that Mr. Kondian had admitted to being the person who actually killed Mr. Alessi (App. 27). Such evidence was in fact consistent with the theory of defense and would have been presented by trial counsel had he been aware of it (App. 27).

At Mr. Scott's trial, the State's theory was that Mr. Scott and Mr. Kondian jointly planned the robbery and murder of Mr. Alessi. The State's only witness as to such planning was Mr. Charles Soutullo. "Without question, Soutullo was the State's key witness. Soutullo testified that Kondian and appellant discussed their plan to rob and murder Alessi." Scott v. Dugger, 891 F.2d 800 (11th Cir. 1989). However, Mr. Soutullo has now admitted that he lied at the State's direction because he was afraid of potential charges.⁶

The State called twenty-one witnesses at Mr. Scott's trial. These witnesses were:

1. **Charles Vincent Soutullo:**

Mr. Soutullo testified that he had come to Ft. Lauderdale in June or July of 1978 after stealing some jewelry from a drug dealer in California. (R. 714-15). He met Richard Kondian at the end of the summer and lived with him and Felicia Brooks at the Lauderdale Terrace Hotel and Tradewinds Hotel for a month. (R. 716-717). He met Paul Scott in October of 1978. (R. 718).

⁶Mr. Scott previously presented to this Court his claims arising from Mr. Soutullo's recantation. However, this Court found that, without more, Mr. Soutullo's recantation was insufficient to warrant an evidentiary hearing. Scott v. Dugger, 634 So. 2d 1062, 1065 (Fla. 1993).

On the evening of December 4, 1978, Mr. Soutullo had a discussion with Rick Kondian and Paul Scott. (R. 720). Rick wanted Soutullo to go with him to "rob this guy named Jim." Paul and Rick were both asking Soutullo to come along and help them tie Alessi up and throw him in the closet. (R. 726). They were going to rob Alessi. (R. 728). They were going to "inject him with some acid, battery acid or acid." (R. 728).

Soutullo refused to go because didn't want to get in trouble with the police. (R. 731). He packed up his things after Kondian and Scott left and moved to the Sheraton. (R. 733). He never saw Paul Scott or Richard Kondian again. (R. 736).

Mr. Soutullo thus gave no evidence regarding either Mr. Scott's or Mr. Kondian's condition after the homicide. He made no mention of a champagne bottle, nor of Kondian's cut finger.

2. David Thomas:

He arrested Paul Scott and Bernadine Bernard in Sacramento, CA (R. 776).

3. Robert Reece:

He searched the hotel room in Sacramento and collected evidence from the room (R. 785).

4. James Valle:

He was the manager of Caribbean Tradewinds Hotel in Ft. Lauderdale. He testified regarding hotel records and that Soutullo stayed there (R. 798).

5. Carmen Alessi:

⁷Mr. Soutullo's testimony was ruled inadmissible unless and until he indicated that Paul Scott joined into the conversation and specifically stated that he was part of the plan (R. 725). After the trial judge so ruled, the State was able to get Mr. Soutullo to indicate that Mr. Scott was part of the conversation and was saying the same things Mr. Kondian said.

James Alessi came down to borrow his car on December 4, 1994. Paul Scott and Rick Kondian were with him. Paul Scott did not say anything and stayed in the car the entire time. Paul Scott wore glasses. When they drove away, Kondian was driving Alessi's car and Alessi drove his father's car (R. 812).

6. Arlene Syler:

She had ordered flowers from James Alessi. She went to Alessi's house on December 5, 1978 and called police. She had no contact with Paul Scott or Richard Kondian (R. 831).

7. Bernard Collins:

He was the investigating officer. He did a video-tape of the crime scene (R. 856).

8. Phillip Sweeting:

He processed the crime scene. He testified regarding crime scene evidence collection (R. 890, 1290).

9. Felicia Brooks:

She was Soutullo's girlfriend. She was not present at a conversation between Kondian, Scott and Soutullo. She did not see Scott or Kondian after Alessi's death (R. 1001).

10. Clarence Quinn:

He was the evidence technician who dusted for fingerprints and collected evidence (R. 1033).

11. Kevin McCoy:

He was the evidence technician who collected blood samples and viewed autopsy (R. 1045).

12. Pat McGowan:

He was the evidence custodian who helped Sweeting with evidence and delivered it to crime lab (R. 1051).

13. Betty Gardner:

She was the nurse who took a blood sample from Kondian (R. 1107).

14. Oral Woods:

He was the fingerprint expert who testified regarding latents lifted by Boca Raton Police (R. 1111).

15. Verna Reddick, R.N.:

She was the nurse who took blood and hair samples from Paul Scott (R. 1137).

16. John Palmisino:

He was the property custodian for Boca Raton Police (R. 1144).

17. Richard Tanton:

He was the serologist who examined blood taken from scene and compared to samples from Paul Scott and Richard Kondian (R. 1156).

18. Gabino Cuevas: (R. 1186)

He was the medical examiner who testified regarding autopsy of James Alessi. Dr. Cuevas testified that James Alessi died as the result of being struck in the head with an unidentified object (R. 1210). No champagne bottle was mentioned as a possible murder weapon during his testimony. Cuevas' only testimony regarding the possible weapon was that the object had to have a 135 degree angle (R. 1204-05).

19. Nancy Flair:

She was a business partner of James Alessi. She identified gold "similar" to gold from his shop (R. 1238).

20. Lillian Alessi:

Lillian Alessi testified that James Alessi had a lot of girlfriends and was going to marry one of them (R. 1252). Ms. Alessi also testified regarding gold in the shop.

21. Diane Swafford:

She was a toxologist who tested samples of Mr. Alessi's blood and urine. She testified that he did not test positive for the drugs for which she tested (R. 1263).

Mr. Kondian did not testify at Mr. Scott's trial. No statements attributed to either Mr. Kondian or Mr. Scott were presented except those testified to by Mr. Soutullo. No witness to or participant in the events at Mr. Alessi's home testified. The only evidence as to what occurred when Mr. Alessi died was the physical evidence found at the crime scene.⁸

In closing arguments, the attorneys relied on the crime scene evidence to support their respective theories regarding what occurred. Mr. Scott's trial counsel argued that while Mr. Kondian killed Mr. Alessi, Mr. Scott ran out of the house and through the patio screen (R. 1370). Mr. Scott's counsel could only rely on the absence of any blood within the house which could be Mr. Scott's blood and only Mr. Scott's blood. This according to counsel showed Mr. Scott was not bleeding. Since there was no blood near the area of the ripped patio screen, trial counsel argued that this was consistent with Mr. Scott running out through the screen in a panic while Mr. Kondian was killing Mr. Alessi (R. 1369-70).

In response to Mr. Scott's defense that Mr. Kondian actually killed Mr. Alessi while Mr. Scott ran out the back (R. 1370), the State argued:

⁸The State falsely represented to the circuit court judge on November 2, 1994, that evidence regarding Mr. Kondian striking Mr. Alessi with a champagne bottle was present at trial. That representation is patently false.

The reason that that's such an expected defense in this case -- especially when the Defendants get tried separately -- is because what do you think Richard Kondian is going to say -- or his lawyer is going to say -- when he comes to trial? "It wasn't me. Paul Scott did everything. I ran out the back."

If you accept that -- if you accept that as reasonable, then nobody is ever going to get convicted in a case like this. I don't raise that as saying that that would be a wrong thing to do if the evidence wasn't there, but the evidence is there. The evidence of his presence in the house, the evidence of the blood, the pattern -- I won't go through it again -- but the evidence is there.

(R. 1418-19) (emphasis added). The prosecutor also argued that the murder weapon was a bear statute that possessed the necessary 135° angle.

Neither Mr. Scott's counsel nor the jury knew that the State possessed evidence supporting Mr. Scott's defense that Mr. Kondian killed Mr. Alessi while Mr. Scott ran out of the house and through the patio screen. The State possessed evidence establishing the prosecutor's closing argument was false when he represented that Mr. Kondian claimed Mr. Scott "did everything."

After convicting Mr. Scott, the jury returned a death recommendation by a vote of seven to five (App. 18). The prosecution argued that the "avoiding arrest" aggravator was present because the final blows to the victim were unnecessary to completion of the robbery and could only have been struck to prevent identification (R. 1676-77). The prosecution made this argument even though it possessed undisclosed evidence that Mr. Kondian, not Mr. Scott, administered the fatal blows. The

prosecution also argued "heinous, atrocious, or cruel" even though it possessed evidence that Kondian had killed Mr. Alessi while Mr. Scott ran out on Kondian and that Mr. Scott was not present when Mr. Kondian beat Mr. Alessi to death. The defense argued that Kondian was the actual killer and the dominant force in the murder. However, the defense was unaware of the statements of Robert Dixon, Dexter Coffin, and Dr. Cuevas, all of which support the theory of defense. The State conceded the age mitigating circumstance. Non-statutory mitigation regarding Mr. Scott's background and family history was presented to the jury. The jury recommended death by a seven to five vote (App. 18).

On January 3, 1980, Mr. Scott was sentenced to death when the judge gave great weight to the jury recommendation. However, the judge found the presence of mitigation in Mr. Scott's background and history. On direct appeal, this Court affirmed Mr. Scott's conviction and death sentence. The opinion noted that the State's case against Mr. Scott consisted of the testimony of Mr. Soutullo as to advance planning, the victim's father seeing the victim with both Mr. Scott and Mr. Kondian the night of the murder, Mr. Scott's fingerprints being found in the house, and his being in later possession of jewelry similar to that owned by the victim. Nothing in this Court's opinion on direct appeal was inconsistent with Mr. Kondian's having been the actual killer. Scott v. State, 411 So. 2d 866 (Fla. 1982). After Mr. Scott's death sentence, Mr. Kondian was allowed on

February 6, 1980, to plea to the reduced charge of second degree murder and was sentenced to forty-five years in prison.⁹

Mr. Scott's conviction and sentence of death were affirmed on appeal. Scott v. State, 411 So. 2d 866 (Fla. 1982), rehearing denied 419 So. 2d 1058 (Fla. 1982). On May 31, 1983, Mr. Scott then petitioned this Court for a writ of habeas corpus and a writ of error coram nobis. Both petitions were denied. Scott v. Wainwright, 433 So. 2d 974 (Fla. 1983).

In June of 1983, Mr. Scott filed a federal petition for habeas corpus relief. The federal petition was subsequently held in abeyance pending exhaustion of Mr. Scott's Rule 3.850 claims. Mr. Scott's initial Rule 3.850 motion was dismissed without prejudice for the failure to file a motion which included a proper oath. Scott v. State, 464 So. 2d 1171 (Fla. 1985).

Mr. Scott then filed a verified Rule 3.850 motion. An evidentiary hearing was held and relief denied. On appeal, the denial of relief was affirmed. Scott v. State, 513 So. 2d 653 (Fla. 1987). Mr. Scott then again sought federal habeas relief. The United States District Court denied relief in part because of the mistaken belief that Mr. Kondian pled guilty to first degree murder and was sentenced to life in prison. Scott v. Dugger, 686 F. Supp. 1488, 1513 (S.D. Fla. 1988). The Eleventh Circuit affirmed. Scott v. Dugger, 891 F.2d 800 (11th Cir. 1989).

⁹After serving fifteen years in prison, Kondian was released and is now a free man.

On October 19, 1990, Governor Martinez signed a death warrant setting Mr. Scott's execution for the week of October 29, 1990. On October 23, 1990, private counsel withdrew. On Monday, October 26, 1990, the Office of the Capital Collateral Representative entered the case for the first time, filing pleadings and seeking a stay of execution. On October 29, 1990, this Court entered a stay to allow volunteer counsel time to file Rule 3.850 pleadings which were filed on December 18, 1990.

In that motion, Mr. Scott presented numerous affidavits. These affidavits included one from Mr. Soutullo acknowledging that he lied at Mr. Scott's trial. Mr. Scott also relied upon a Rhode Island police report indicating that Mr. Kondian indicated at the time of his arrest he cut his finger on a champagne bottle that Kondian used to strike Mr. Alessi. Mr. Scott argued that these matters showed that he had not had an adequate adversarial testing. Other affidavits were presented indicating that Mr. Kondian had confessed to a number of individuals over the years following Mr. Scott's trial as having been the actual killer of Mr. Alessi. These latter affidavits were argued as newly discovered evidence of innocence not available at the time of trial.

This Court affirmed the summary denial of Mr. Scott's 1990 motion to vacate. As to Mr. Scott's claim that newly discovered evidence of innocence warranted an evidentiary hearing under Jones v. State, 591 So. 2d 911 (Fla. 1992), this Court said:

The assertion that Kondian had committed the murder and that Kondian had injured his

finger during a struggle with the victim were both known prior to the initial trial and raised at trial and in prior collateral proceedings. See Scott v. State, 411 So.2d 866 (Fla.1982); Scott v. State, 513 So.2d 653 (Fla.1987). We find that these are not new issues. One of Scott's theories at trial was that Kondian killed the victim. Furthermore, Scott previously raised these claims in a motion for writ of error coram nobis. See Scott v. Wainwright, 433 So.2d 974. As we stated in Scott v. Wainwright: "The 'new evidence' that Scott wants to present at a new sentencing hearing relates to his version of how the murder was committed. This is not 'newly discovered' evidence." Id. at 976. Last, none of the affidavits submitted with the instant rule 3.850 motion exonerates Scott. Kondian's affidavit and his statements at his plea hearing acknowledge that Scott participated in the savage beating of the victim. The only allegation beneficial to Scott in Kondian's affidavit is Kondian's statement that Scott never intended to kill the victim. We note that the evidence establishes that the victim died from multiple blows to the head that he received after he had been bound hand and foot. Looking at the entire record of all three proceedings before this Court, we find that the evidence asserted as new in these proceedings is not newly discovered evidence. Jones v. State, 591 So.2d 9011 (Fla.1992); Preston v. State, 564 So.2d 120 (Fla.1990). We conclude that Scott is procedurally barred from relitigating this issue. Francis v. Barton, 581 So.2d 583 (Fla.), cert. denied, U.S. _____, 111 S.Ct. 2879, 115 L.Ed.2d 1045 (1991).

Scott v. Dugger, 634 So. 2d 1062, 1065 (Fla. 1993).

As to Mr. Scott's claim of a violation of Brady v. Maryland, 373 U.S. 83 (1963), Giglio v. United States, 405 U.S. 150 (1972), and Strickland v. Washington, 466 U.S. 668 (1984), this Court stated:

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