# FILED

SID J. WHITE

CLERK, SURREME COURT

Chief Deputy Clerk

By .

NOV 14 1994

## IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

CASE NO. 84686

## PAUL WILLIAM SCOTT,

## Appellant,

vs.

## STATE OF FLORIDA,

#### Appellee.

ON APPEAL FROM THE FIFTEENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT COURT, IN AND FOR PALM BEACH COUNTY, STATE OF FLORIDA

#### ANSWER BRIEF OF APPELLEE

ROBERT A. BUTTERWORTH Attorney General Tallahassee, Florida

CELIA A. TERENZIO Assistant Attorney General Florida Bar No. 656879 1655 Palm Beach Lakes Blvd. Suite 300 West Palm Beach, FL 33401-2299 Telephone: (407) 688-7759

Counsel for Appellee

####

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

<sup>25</sup> In the last collateral motion, Scott indicated to this Court that he was currently in litigation in California state court, attempting to get his 1974 guilty plea overturned. The plea still stands as Scott was denied all relief in state court on February 21, 1991. Scott did not commence federal proceedings until June of 1994. Scott has yet been able to obtain relief.

The state argued that the Johnson v. Mississippi claim was procedurally barred and no valid claim was presented given that his California conviction was still valid. This Court denied all relief based on a procedural bar. Scott v. State, 634 So. 2d 1062 (Fla. 1993).

 $^{20}$  Scott attempted to challenge the "HAC" instruction for the first time in this Court during the last appeal of a motion for postconviction relief. He did so in his reply brief to this Court. The state argued at oral argument, that the issue was

Rudnick's letter to the parole commission objecting to Kondian's release<sup>27</sup>; 19). An affidavit from the trial attorney stating that the statements of Soutullo, Coffin, Dexter and the medical examiner would have been exculpatory evidence used by him.<sup>28</sup>

All of the above facts/issues have already been brought out at trial or litigated in one of the prior collateral proceedings consequently they are all procedurally barred.<sup>29</sup> <u>Scott v. Dugger</u>, 634 So. 2d 1062, 1065 (Fla. 1993); <u>Jones v.</u>

Court. The state argued at oral argument, that the issue was procedurally barred for raising it for the first time in a reply brief, for failing to raise it at trial, on direct appealor in the first motion for postconviction relief. This Court found the entire motion for postconviction relief to be proceduarlly barred. <u>Scott v. State</u>, 634 So. 2d 1062, 1065 (Fla. 1993).

This Court found Scott to be procedurally barred from raising the alleged disparate treatment of the two codefendants. Scott v State, 634 So. 2d 1062, 1065 (Fla. 1993).

Kondian's guilty plea and sentence were known since February 6, 1980. Judge Rudnick's letter does not overcome the procedural default attached to the untimely nature of this issue.

<sup>28</sup> Trial attorney George Barrs testified at the first motion for postconviction relief, <u>Scott v. State</u>, 513 So. 2d 653, 654 (Fla. 1987), consequently, relitigation of same facts based on a different argument is procedurally barred. <u>Francis v. Barton</u>, 581 So. 2d 583 (Fla.), <u>cert. denied</u>, <u>U.S.</u>, 111 S.Ct. 2879, 115 L. Ed. 2d 1045 (1991).

<sup>29</sup> Scott claimed in number 8 that the prosecutor engaged in improper/ exparte communications with the Chief Judge. This claim is procedurally barred for failing to raise it on appeal. If Scott objected to the recusal as he claims he did, then he could have raised the issue on appeal.

Scott does not even attempt to explain why he failed to raise this claim before now. Furthermore, if he claims that he was not aware of the allegation until he received 119 material from the state attorney's office such will not overcome a procedural bar as he should have pursued same before now. Zeigler v. State, 632 So. 2d 48 (Fla. 1994).

- 34 -

<u>State</u>, 591 So. 2d 911 (Fla. 1992); <u>Preston v. State</u>, 564 So. 2d 120 (Fla. 1990); <u>Francis v. Barton</u>, 581 So. 2d 583 (Fla. <u>cert</u>. <u>denied</u>, <u>U.S.</u>, 111 S.Ct. 2879, 115 L. Ed. 2d 1045 (1991).

As detailed above, most of the information/evidence presented in this motion was already raised in any one if not all the prior state collateral proceedings. The "new" affidavits of Coffin and Dixon do not overcome the procedural barred attached this successive motion. More importantly, the "new" to information does nothing to exonerate Scott or establish a probability that a different result would have occured if this evidence was presented. Williamson v. Dugger, Case No. 74, 973 & 76, 860 (Fla. November 10, 1994). Curiously in this motion Scott claims that this exculpatory evidence was never presented before because of state misconduct. In the past, Scott claimed it was not presented before becasue of ineffective assistance of counsel. Scott v. State, 513 So. 2d 653 (Fla. 1987). Consequently not only are his prior statements and theories inconsistent with one another, the legal theories under which he repeatedly brings forth the claims are also inconsistent. In summation, the "new" information is identical in content to what has previously been presented and already found by this Court to be lacking in credibility. Williamson. This issue remains procedurally barred. Preston; Jones; Francis.

## ISSUE II

SCOTT'S CLAIM THAT THE STATE DELIBERATELY USED FALSE AND MISLEADING TESTIMONY AND ARGUMENT IS PROCEDURALLY BARRED FOR FAILING TO RAISE IT IN PRIOR LITIGATION

In issue II Scott claims that the State mislead the judge and jury and withheld evidence. Specifically he claims that the state withheld evidence of the victim's sexual orientation, mislead the jury when it claimed that a particular weapon was the murder weapon, misinformed the jury when it stated that the killer was left handed, presented perjured testimony of Charles Soutullo, misrepresented to the jury Kondian's position, presented false argument regarding who may have torn the screen from the door, and falsely argued that other crime scene photographs were not relevant.

As with Issue I this claim is also procedurally barred as it is again a variation of Scott's previous arguments, i.e.; Kondian killed the victim. <u>Scott</u>, 634 So. 2d at 1065; <u>Francis v</u>. <u>Barton</u>, 581 So. 2d 583, <u>cert.</u> <u>denied</u>, 111 S.Ct. 2879, 115 L. Ed. 2d 1045; <u>Foster v. State</u>, 614 So. 2d 455 (Fla. 1992); <u>Spaziano v</u>. <u>State</u>, 570 So. 2d 289 (Fla. 1990). Furthermore to the extent that any part of this issue was not previously raised, Scott cannot overcome the procedural bar that such issues should have been raised on direct appeal. Allegations of prosecutorial misconduct is something that should have been raised on direct appeal. <u>Kelly v. State</u>, 569 So. 2d 754, 756 (Fla. 1990).

# ISSUE III

.

## MR. SCOTT'S CLAIM OF INNOCENCE IS PROCEDURALLY BARRED AS IT HAS BEEN RAISED IN PRIOR LITIGATION

In claim three, Scott again is claiming that he is innocent of murder and innocent of the death penalty. Sawyer v. Whitely, 112 S.Ct. 2514 (1992). In Sawyer the United States Supreme Court, articulated an "actual innocence" exception that would overcome the procedural bar of abuse of the writ. Sawyer is not applicable to the instant case. Under Florida case law this Court will consider a claim of newly discovered evidence if the evidence was not known and could not have been known by them with the use of diligence. Jones v. State, 591 So. 2d 911, 913-916 (Fla. 1992). The Court notes in the opinion that this standard is currently used by the federal courts as well. Jones, 591 So. 2d at 915.<sup>30</sup>

Scott cannot overcome the procedural bar attached to this successive motion. In <u>Stewart v. State</u>, 632 So. 2d 59, 61 (Fla. 1993) the Florida Supreme Court stated:

> "Now Stewart argues that he is "innocent the death penalty' of and that the part prejudice test of the for ineffectiveness should be reconsidered. is reargument of This the claim of ineffectiveness, which is not proper in successive motions.

- 37 -

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>30</sup> Scott challenged the error coram nobis standard in federal court. The district court upheld the constitutionality of same and analogized it to the federal standard regarding procedural bar. <u>Scott v. Dugger</u>, 686 F. Supp. 1488, 1513-1515 (S.D. Fla. 1988).

Again Scott claims that the newly discovered evidence just uncovered consists of the affidavits of Coffin and Dixon and Soutullo's recanted testimony. Scott claims that these affidavits prove his innocence. This Court has already found similar affidavits not to be "newly discovered evidence." <u>Scott</u>, 634 So. 2d at 1065.<sup>31</sup>

ang salarah

Also based on these same affidavits is Scott's claim that his sentence is in violation of Enmund v. Florida, 458 U.S. 782 (1982). This issue is procedurally barred as it has been raised and rejected in Scott's state habeas petition. Scott v. State, 433 So. 2d 974 (Fla. 1983).<sup>32</sup>

Scott's attack on the aggravating factors is also procedurally barred. <u>Kelly v. State</u>, 569 So. 2d 754, 756 (Fla. 1990). Scott challenged the sufficiency of the evidence to establish "heinous, atrocious, and cruel on direct appeal. That challenge is without merit and remains so. <u>Scott v.State</u>, 411 So. 2d 866, 869 (Fla. 1983); Scott v. Dugger, 686 F. Supp. 1488 (S.D.



<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>31</sup> The substance of the Coffin and Dixon affidavits are identical to the substance of all previous affidavits filed in prior collateral proceedings, i.e., Kondian is more culpable. Soutullo's recantation has been previously litigated in the prior motion and found to be unmeritorious. Soutullo's girlfriend testified that they were approached by Kondian and Scott. Scott was present during the conversation with Soutullo. (R 992-998).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>32</sup> The district court made a finding that Scott's clemency testimony alone satisfied the requirements of <u>Enmund v. Florida</u>, 458 U.S. 782 (1982). <u>Scott v. Dugger</u>, 686 F. Supp. 1488, 1520 n.10.

Fla. 1988); Scott v. Dugger, 891 F. 2d 800 (Fla. 1989).
Relitigation is barred.

Scott now is attempting to attack the constitutionality of the "HAC" jury instruction. Such a claim could have been raised on direct appeal but was not. Failure to do so precludes review now. <u>Koon v. State</u>, 619 So. 2d 246 (Fla. 1993); <u>Ponticelli v. Dugger</u>, 618 So. 2d 154 (Fla.) <u>cert</u>. <u>denied</u>, <u>U.S.</u> 114 S.Ct. 352, 126 L. Ed. 2d 316 (1994).

Scott is presently attempting to challenge the constitutionality of the jury instruction on "HAC" in both federal district court and in the 11th Circuit Court of Appeals.<sup>33</sup> In both courts he is proceeding under a theory that a recent panel decision of the 11th Circuit, <u>Glock v. Singletary</u>, \_\_\_\_\_\_ F.3rd \_\_\_\_\_ (11th Cir. October 7, 1994) is an intervenening change in the law. <u>Glock</u> overturned a Florida death sentence based on an vague jury instruction pursuant to <u>Espinosa v.</u> <u>Florida</u>. 112 S.Ct. 2926 (1992).

In both federal venues the state argued that Scott has never presented this challenge to the jury instruction to any court, state of federal. Attached to the written response in federal district were all the pleadings from state and federal courts outlining how the issue has been previously presented.

- 39 -

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>33</sup> In district court, Scott argued that there has been an intervening change in the law pursuant to <u>Fed. R. of Pro.</u> 60(b). In the 11th Circuit, Scott has argued that the Court should recall mandate from <u>Scott v. Dugger</u>, 891 F. 2d 800 (11th Cir. 1989).

(See attached exhibit). The state maintained that Scott has only challenged the application of the factor itself and never has challenged the instruction.<sup>34</sup> The federal district court has determined that Scott in fact did not challenge the instruction in federal court. (See attached exhibit).

Oral argument on the motion to recall the mandate was held in the 11th Circuit on Thursday, November 10, 1994. The Court has not yet ruled on the issue. A focus of the argument centered on whether this issue was properly presented in federal court. The circuit court did inquire as to the procedural posture of this "HAC" instruction issue in state court. The circuit court has requested a copy of the briefs filed in this appeal. The state urges this Court to find this claim in irrevocable procedural default for Scott's failure to ever properly raise this issue on direct appeal or in one of the previous collateral proceedings. The state also requests that this Court make that finding in a clear and explicit statement. Francis; Preston; Ylst v. Ninnemaker, 111 S.Ct. 2590 (1991).

On direct appeal Scott challenged the propriety of the aggravating factor that the murder was committed during the course of a robbery. Scott did not challenge the aggravating factors of under sentence of imprisonment and prior violent

<sup>34</sup> See footnote 26.

felony, consequently he is procedurally barred from raising that issue at this late juncture. Kelly. $^{35}$ 

Scott's claim that his sentence is disproportionate, based on Kondian's alleged greater culpability has been found to be procedurally barred in his last collateral proceeding. <u>Scott</u>, 634 So. 2d at 1065. Nothing presented in this appeal warrants revocation of that procedural bar. <u>Steinhorst v. Singletary</u>, 638 So. 2d 33, 35 (Fla. 1994).

Scott's claim that he is mentally retarded is also barred for failing to raise it before now. <u>Francis v. Barton</u>, 581 So.2d 583 (Fla.), <u>cert. denied</u>, <u>U.S.</u> 111 S.Ct. 2879, 115 L. Ed.2d 1045 (1991); <u>Woods v. State</u>, 531 So. 2d 79 (Fla. 1988); <u>Foster v. State</u>, 614 So. 2d 455 (Fla. 1992); <u>Spaziano v. State</u>, 570 So. 2d 289 (Fla. 1990).<sup>36</sup>

 $<sup>^{35}</sup>$  The substance of this argument appears at issue V.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>36</sup> See footnote 24 detailing the evidence to establish that Scott is not mentally impaired.

## **ISSUE IV**

SCOTT'S CLAIM THAT HE IS MENTALLY RETARDED AND BRAIN DAMAGED IS PROCEDURALLY BARRED FOR FAILING TO RAISE IT IN A PRIOR MOTION

Scott is procedurally barred form raising any claim regarding his intellectual functioning at this late date. As stated in issue III, the basis for this claim was available in the previous motion for post-conviction relief.<sup>37</sup> This successive motion is procedurally barred. <u>Wood State</u>, 531 So. 2d 79 (Fla. 1988)(executing a mentally deficient person could have and should have been raised on direct appeal).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>37</sup> See footnote 24. The credibility of this claim must be seriously called into question given the contradictory statements that have been made throughout this case.

## ISSUE V

SCOTT IS PROCEDURALLY BARRED FROM A RAISING A "POTENTIAL" JOHNSON V. MISSISSIPPI CLAIM AS SAME COULD HAVE BEEN RAISED IN A PRIOR MOTION

procedurally barred from raising this Scott is potential claim again. In the prior collateral proceedings Scott asked this Court for a stay of execution in order to get his state conviction overturned in California state court. This Court granted a stay based on the appointment of new counsel. Scott v. State, 634 So. 2d 1962, 1063 (Fla. 1993).<sup>38</sup> Scott unsuccessfully challenged the prior conviction in California state court. Litigation in state court was concluded on February Scott waited until June of 1994 to begin federal 21, 1991. proceedings. Scott is now attempting to challenge his prior conviction in federal court in California, in an attempt to establish a Johnson v. Mississippi, 486 U.S. 578 (1988) claim. 39 As of the filing of this brief, Scott's prior conviction is still That litigation did not commence unitl June of 1994. valid.

 $<sup>^{38}</sup>$  The state argued that this claim was procedurally barred for failing to raise it in a prior collateral proceeding. The state also argued that the issue was not even viable goiven that Scott's prior convition was then and still is valid. In ultimately denying all relief, this Court did not discuss the procedural deficiencies regarding this claim. The court however did determine that entire collateral proceedings were procedurally barred. Scott, 634 So. 2d at 1065.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>39</sup> A federal magistrate has recommended that the petition be dismissed for lack of subject matter jurisdiction. Scott has also just filed a successive petition in federal court in the Southern District of Florida regarding this issue. The state's response is due on Sunday November 13, 1994. Argument on the motion is set for November 14, 1994

Again Scott aks this Court for a stay to pursue this claim again in yet another venue. Scott's piecemeal litigation is procedurally barred. <u>Scott v. Dugger</u>, 634 So. 2d 1062, 1065 (Fla. 1993); <u>Preston</u>. The viability of this claim must be seriously questioned given that Scott suspended litigation of this claim for three and half years.<sup>40</sup>

Furthermore this claim is untimely as it should have been raised within two years of the knowledge that his guilty plea was "invalid". In other words, Scott knew long before now that his guilty plea from 1974 was in someway unconstitutional. This claim is procedurally barred. <u>Henderson v. Singletary</u>, 617 So.2d 313 316 (Fla. 1993)(<u>Johnson v. Mississippi</u> claim barred when failure to attack the prior conviction was not done within two years of knowing basis for the attack).

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